
20 December 2018

NOTICE OF MEETING

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE
will meet on

Tuesday, 8 January 2019
beginning at

7:00 pm
at

Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

TO: Councillor Paul Bicknell (Chairman)
Councillor Tina Campbell (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Alex Bourne Councillor Daniel Clarke
Councillor Jephthe Doguie Councillor Wayne Irish
Councillor Darshan Mann Councillor Rosemary Reynolds
Councillor Sara Tyson-Payne

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Performance and Governance Lead Specialist 
Tel: 023 8068 8041; Email:  DemocraticServices@eastleigh.gov.uk

Guy Riddoch, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 3369; Email: 
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk

GAETANA WISEMAN
Performance and Governance Manager

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website -

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request.

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed. To register please contact the Democratic Services 
Officer above. 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public, and  
Councillors will be using tablet devices to access committee papers.

Eastleigh House
 Upper Market Street
Eastleigh SO50 9YN

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA

1. Chairman's Report    

2. Public Participation    

3. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4) 

To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 15 November 2019. 

4. Apologies    

5. Declarations of Interest     

Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

6. Eastleigh Air Quality Management Action Plan - Update    (Pages 5 - 44)

7. Eastleigh Town Centre Various Order    (Pages 45 - 74)

8. Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan 2019/20    (Pages 75 - 78)

9. Financial Management Report    (Pages 79 - 82)

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday, 7 March 2019 at 7:00 pm

at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN

Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news-

Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

Thursday, 15 November 2018  (7:00 pm – 7:22 pm)

PRESENT:

Councillor Bicknell (Chairman); Councillors Campbell, Bourne, Clarke, 
Doguie, Irish, Mann, Reynolds and Tyson-Payne

________________________________________

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY)

31. CHAIRMAN'S REPORT

The Chair was pleased to see so many people in attendance on the 
recreation ground for the Remembrance Service on 11 November 2018.  
More wreaths were laid than ever before with the largest ever attendance. 
The new monolith and names attracted a large crowd and was very well 
received.  The names were provided by the Royal British Legion for the 
parish of Eastleigh.  

The Chair thanked Councillor Mann for representing the Council at the 
Remembrance events in Paris over the weekend.  Councillor Irish would 
be doing the same in Kornwestheim this weekend.

The Chair announced that the Christmas Light switch on would take place 
on Saturday 17 November; culminating in a fireworks display at 6pm.  
There would be over 100 stalls in the town.

32. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Simon Payne addressed the Committee regarding the four hour waiting 
bays on Cherbourg Road.  There was space for five vehicles but these 
were currently being used by local businesses.  The problem was 
compounded by properties that had been converted into flats without 
sufficient parking.  Mr Payne questioned whether these bays could 
become two hour waiting restrictions.  The Chair replied that there was 
scope to change the limited waiting restrictions but it is unlikely to be high 
on the priority list as the Committee had a large list of schemes.  
Unfortunately there is very little that can be done about commercial 
vehicles if they were parked legally.  There had been an indication from 
Hampshire County Council that two and four hour bays will become 
metred but the Council was awaiting the detail.

Mr Payne also queried, in the case of properties converted to Houses of 
Multiple Occupancy (HMO); did the occupants qualify for residents or 
visitors permits?  The Chair replied in the cases of HMOs and ‘garden 

1

Agenda Item 3



2

grab’ developments that only the owner was entitled to residential and 
visitors permits if they were still living in the property.

33. MINUTES

RESOLVED -

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2018 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record.

Councillor Bourne queried whether the letter regarding the Chickenhall 
Lane Link Road had been sent (minute 29)?  Guy Riddoch agreed to 
check and report back to the Committee.

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda.

35. PARKING FEE LEVELS IN EASTLEIGH

The Committee considered a report by the Strategy Lead for Environment 
concerning parking fee levels in Eastleigh.

RESOLVED – 

1) That the proposal to increase the one hour parking tariff for both on- 
and off-street parking in the local area by 20p to £1.50p, but keep all 
other tariffs the same be approved; and

2) That in addition to recommendation 1, the proposal that the one hour 
on-street parking is to be increased by a further 10p to £1.60p be 
approved.

36. FEES AND CHARGES

The Committee considered a report of the Local Area Manager regarding 
the fees and charges for the Eastleigh Local Area.  The Area Manager 
informed the Committee that there was an update to Appendix A of the 
report: the date the fees become effective should read 1 April 2019 as 
current hirers of Lakeside Country Park had booked until the end of March.

RESOLVED – 

That the Fees and Charges for the Eastleigh Local Area, subject to the 
amendment above, as set out in Appendices A to E with effect from 1 
January 2019 be approved.

2



3

M6090

3



This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

08 January 2019

EASTLEIGH AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA ACTION PLAN 

- UPDATE

REPORT OF THE ENVIRONMENT LEAD SPECIALIST

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Eastleigh Local Area Committee 

(1) Agrees the update concerning Air Quality in Eastleigh and comments as 
appropriate, on the progress in delivering the Air Quality Management 
Plan;

(2) Agrees to relocate two of the monitoring stations once Government 
legislation has been confirmed and subject to funding being agreed by 
Cabinet; and

(3) Agrees to review and update the report as set out in the Air Quality 
Management Action Plan 2019/20 (Appendix 4)

Summary
Following the January 2015 Eastleigh Local Area Committee (ELAC) a request was 
made for regular updates on the state of air quality and progress in implementing the 
Eastleigh Air Quality Management Area Action Plan.  This report gives this update and 
identifies key issues up to the beginning of December 2018.

Statutory Powers
 Environment Act 1995, Part IV

 Air Quality Strategy for England 2007

 Air quality plan for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in UK (2017)

5

Agenda Item 6



1.0 Introduction
1.1 All ‘District’ Councils have a duty to carry out reviews and monitor current and 

future air quality within their area and take action where objectives are being 
breached.  Areas which exceed pollutant objectives must be designated as an 
Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and a 5 year Action Plan produced.

1.2 The borough has four Air Quality Management Areas:
 Eastleigh No. 1 (A335)
 Eastleigh No. 2 (M3)
 Hamble Lane
 High Street Botley

1.3 Eastleigh AQMA No.1 (A335) includes Southampton Road, Leigh Road, 
Twyford Road (part), Woodside Avenue (part) and Bishopstoke Road (part).  
Eastleigh AQMA no.2 (M3) passes though the south west, and borders the 
western boundary of ELAC.  A map outlining the areas covered can be found 
in Appendix 1.

2.0 Background
2.1 The air quality measures focus on the levels of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2), 

however actions taken to tackle this will also help to reduce fine particulate 
matter (PM2.5) and coarse particulate matter (PM10).  

2.2 Air quality is monitored in a number of locations across Eastleigh Local Area, 
using two principal methods:

 Diffusion tube data monitors for NO2.
 Real time monitoring stations for NO2 & PM10.

2.3 The diffusion tube data is used for monitoring long term trends, such as the 
annual average level of pollutants at a specific geographical location, and 
understanding the spread of air pollution.  The real time stations are much 
more accurate and very sensitive to fluctuations in pollution levels, therefore 
can show changes as they happen during the course of a day.

2.4 There are 18 diffusion tubes located in the Eastleigh Local Area, with a further 
5 in close proximity to the ELAC boundary.  These are listed and shown on a 
map in Appendix 1.  

2.5 There are also two real time monitoring stations located within ELAC, at The 
Point and Southampton Road, and a further one just outside the boundary at 
Steele Close. 

6



2.6 This report will describe the recorded pollution levels from the real time 
monitoring stations over the past 12 months, and the annual trends from the 
diffusion tube data from 2012 to the present.

2.7 An update for the Eastleigh Air Quality Action Plan is provided in Appendix 2.  
This gives an overview of the progress and activity in support of the action 
plan to date.  

National Draft Clean Air Strategy 2018
2.8 As reported previously the Council is awaiting the government’s revised Clean 

Air Strategy which is due to be published in spring 2019.  It proposes strict 
new PM targets, which at current levels the Council would be unlikely to meet.  
PM2.5 is highlighted as a pollutant to be focussed on, something that has an 
implication on our monitoring, as the Council does not have a PM2.5 analyser.  
The Senior Specialist will report separately on implications for the Eastleigh 
AQMA Action Plan specifically for the other AQMAs across the borough, and 
for the strategic and practical approaches the Council takes to implementing 
any changes that come forward as result of the revised Clean Air Strategy 
nationally.  

Southampton’s Clean Air Zone
2.9 Southampton City Council (SCC) is required by the government to implement 

a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in order to bring emissions of NO2 in Southampton 
down to legal levels as soon as possible.  As a considerable percentage of the 
traffic entering the city has to pass through Eastleigh, Southampton’s actions 
will have a significant impact upon the borough’s congestion levels and air 
quality.

2.10 Southampton’s preferred option is to have a whole city zone with charges for 
buses, coaches, taxis and heavy goods vehicles.  A report containing the 
results of their public consultation has now been published and SCC are 
currently preparing a business case to put to Defra, which needs to be 
submitted by 31 January 2019.  As part of their business case they are 
remodelling some of the air quality impacts relating to the CAZ, as well as 
considering business impacts.

2.11 Whilst a Clean Air Zone is a positive step in terms of reducing pollution in 
Southampton, EBC officers have requested that as part of the detailed 
feasibility studies, Southampton model the impact within Eastleigh particularly 
how it affects our Air Quality Management Areas. As Eastleigh businesses 
have vehicles that frequent Southampton on a regular basis, the Council have 
also requested that SCC look at the potential impacts on these businesses.

7



3.0 Progress in Implementing the Eastleigh Action Plan

3.1 The progress to date in implementing the 21 measures identified in the Action 
Plan is detailed in Appendix 2.  In this section, some of the main activities 
undertaken and progress made since the last update report are highlighted.

3.2 There has been some further investigation into the NO2 concentrations at 
relevant exposure points on Southampton Road, with the deployment of a 
new diffusion tube location.  This is opposite the junction with Campbell Road, 
where the house façades are closer to the traffic than at the location of the 
continuous monitors.  The location was chosen as the result of concerns 
expressed by a resident of one of these houses.  At this stage only one month 
of data is available, but the early indication from this is that levels at this 
location are likely above the annual limit value.  The Specialist staff will need 
to wait until they have at least 6 months data before they can comment with 
more certainty.  See Section 4.6 for more detail.  

3.3 The Council’s partnership with ‘Iknaia’ is ongoing and it is continuing to use 
and test the ‘Airscan’ air quality and traffic movement technology.  There is 
now a year’s worth of preliminary data from the two Airscan units which were 
installed at The Point and Wessex House.  Work has begun on analysing this 
and comparing it to results from the Council’s nearby continuous monitoring 
stations.  

3.4 As a part of this project the council recently submitted a bid to the DEFRA Air 
Quality Grant Scheme for 2018/19, based around expanding our trial of the 
Airscan units. It highlights the novel approach of simultaneously measuring 
traffic movements and air quality and we propose to use the system as a way 
of targeting key junctions.  It will be used to identify new measures to improve 
congestion and air quality, provide a way of evaluating the effectiveness of 
existing measures, and to provide more information to local residents and 
businesses on air pollution levels and traffic congestion across the town.  The 
system would be flexible and portable and could be used in many places 
across the borough. If funded, the first phase of this work would be a 
comprehensive assessment of the Eastleigh Town AQMA, including the key 
roundabout at the Station Hill – Leigh Road – Twyford Road – Bishopstoke 
Road junction.  The result of this bid is expected in February 2019.

3.5 The council entered a second bid to the DEFRA Air Quality Grant Scheme in 
partnership with Southampton City Council, New Forest District Council and 
Winchester City Council.  This proposal was based around a campaign to 
raise awareness of the air quality impacts of solid fuel burning and to highlight 
the importance of the use of correctly conditioned fuel. It will also promote 
good practice in the use of domestic stoves and fireplaces, and would fund a 
new role to lead this work.  Wood burning can be a source of high levels of 
particulates and any progress in reducing these sources and improving air 

8



quality would have benefits across the Eastleigh Local Area.  The result of this 
bid is expected in February 2019.

3.6 Consultants are using the results from the development of the traffic modelling 
carried out by ‘Systra’ to predict the levels of NO2 and PM in Eastleigh for 
2020, given the committed developments and Strategic Growth Areas 
identified in the Local Plan.  The purpose of this is to ascertain how likely we 
are to meet the national target for NO2 by that date and to assist with action 
planning around reducing air pollution.  Continuing from this, further source 
apportionment will provide information on the type of vehicles to target with 
these actions.  The results of the modelling are not yet available due to a 
delay in receiving the traffic modelling data from ‘Systra’, upon which it relies.  
We expect to have the modelling results by spring 2019.

3.7 The Council is continuing to work with the Hampshire County Council Schools 
Travel Planning Officer on promoting awareness and understanding of the 
issues around air pollution with school children across the borough, as part of 
the Southampton area ‘Access’ funding.  This has involved schools within 
ELAC (The Crescent Primary and Cherbourg Primary) as well as others in the 
borough (Wildern School, Hamble School and Hamble Primary).  The children 
monitor air pollution using tubes provided by EBC, and have also been 
planning their own Air Quality campaigns.  They aim to inform people about 
air pollution and persuade them to change their behaviour to help improve air 
quality. Their activities involve raising awareness through talking to their 
friends and family, designing posters and other materials, and holding events.  
Staff from local businesses have collaborated to discuss ideas with the 
children and help them with their plans.  

4.0 Air Quality Monitoring Results
4.1 Air quality monitoring data for the three automatic monitoring stations for 2018 

(up to the end of November) can be found in Appendix 3.  The Council 
currently monitors in Eastleigh for NO2 and PM10, which is particles of 10 µm 
or less.  Details of the annual averages and hourly exceedances of these 
pollutants in 2018 are shown in the table below:

9



Site Pollutant Air Quality Objective Measured As Value/ 
Exceedances*

Objective 
Achieved*

40 µgm-3 Annual Mean 38 µgm-3 YesNO2

200 µgm-3 (not to be 
exceeded more than 
18 times per year)

Hourly Mean 0 
Exceedances

Yes

40 µgm-3 Annual Mean 23 µgm-3 Yes

Southampton 
Road

PM10

50 µgm-3 (not to be 
exceeded more than 
35 times per year)

24 Hour Mean 2 
Exceedances

Yes

40 µgm-3 Annual Mean 26 µgm-3 YesThe Point NO2

200 µgm-3 (not to be 
exceeded more than 
18 times per year)

Hourly Mean 0 
Exceedances

Yes

* This data is provisional and can therefore only offer an indication to the year’s 
results.  A full calendar year to date has been analysed, to give the most accurate 
indication of the annual average, but as data is only available to the end of November 
2018 this includes December 2017.

The automatic monitoring station at Steele Close is just outside the ELAC boundary, 
and monitors for NO2.  Details of the annual average and hourly exceedances at this 
site in 2018 are shown in the table below:

Site Pollutant Air Quality 
Objective

Measured 
As

Value/ 
Exceedances*

Objective 
Achieved*

40 µgm-3 Annual Mean 28 µgm-3 YesSteele Close NO2

200 µgm-3 

(not to be 
exceeded 
more than 18 
times per 
year)

Hourly Mean 0 
Exceedances

Yes

* This data is provisional and can therefore only offer an indication to the year’s 
results.  A full calendar year to date has been analysed, to give the most accurate 
indication of the annual average, but as data is only available to the end of November 
2018 this includes December 2017.

4.2 In addition to the use of real time monitoring stations the Pollution Control 
Team uses 53 diffusion tubes, currently at 44 sampling points, to ascertain the 
levels of NO2 across the Borough.  Diffusion tubes are used for the monitoring 

10



of yearly averages and are not suitable for reporting shorter monitoring 
periods.  Essentially, they are used for the monitoring of trends and for initial 
assessments of likely pollution levels.

4.3 The graphs shown in appendix 3 the annual average NO2 levels at 9 sampling 
points in the Eastleigh Area, as well as 4 locations close to the boundary; this 
highlights year-on-year trends over the last 7 years (2012 to 2018).   The 
Hadleigh Gardens sampling point is set well away from any major roads to 
provide an indication of the background levels in the area.  For this reason the 
readings for Hadleigh Gardens are used in each of the graphs to provide an 
indication of the background levels of pollutants, for comparison.  As another 
method of comparison, the final graph shows a selection of the Eastleigh sites 
in relation to countrywide annual averages.

4.4 It should be noted that the 2018 annual averages are provisional and are  
indicative of the year’s results.  Data is only available up to the end of October 
2018, so the annual average is missing two winter months when pollutant 
levels are expected to be relatively high; consequently it is expected the 
annual averages will increase slightly.  Bias adjustment factors are also not 
yet available for this data, so these have been estimated and will be subject to 
change when the official values are available.

4.5 In summary the levels of NO2 on Southampton Road are showing a 
downwards trend, although this is slowing and there are fluctuations within it.  

11



Some of these fluctuations between years will be due to climatic conditions.  
The differences in levels measured at different locations may be partly due to 
site differences, such as the height and distance from the kerbside.  The tubes 
at the Southampton Road Analyser were moved part way through 2017, to 
bring them within the cage with the continuous analyser head.  This is more 
secure, provides better co-location data and also makes the set-up consistent 
with our other continuous analysers.  As a result the tubes are now slightly 
lower and closer to head height, so we would expect them to be more 
representative of exposure.  The increase in concentrations seen at this new 
location (Southampton Road Analyser (17)) may be influenced by this change 
in height.

4.6 Southampton Road clearly looks like it will still be exceeding permissible 
levels by 2020 and others show that the levels will only just be under the 
permissible level.  As discussed in Section 3.2, a new tube was deployed from 
October 2018 at a location on Southampton Road where house facades are 
closer to the traffic.  So far only one month of data is available and bias 
adjustment has been estimated; an early indication of the anticipated levels is 
shown below.

4.7 Other diffusion tube locations in the Eastleigh Local Area show a similar 
pattern of generally decreasing, but fluctuating, levels.  These are shown in 
the graphs below.

12



4.8 Results from sites within the M3 corridor, some also within ELAC and others 
just outside, are shown below.  These follow similar patterns to those already 
seen, generally decreasing but with some fluctuations.  This is less clear in 
sites with lower concentrations at the start of the time period, such as Steele 
Close. 

13



0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 µ
g/

m
3

Year

M3 (Junction 13)

Hadleigh Gardens Leigh Road/Junction 13 Steele Close Annual Mean Objective

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 µ
g/

m
3

Year

M3 Corridor

Hadleigh Gardens Porteous Crescent Medina Close

Belmont Road Dove Dale Annual Mean Objective

4.9 To provide some context for the trends identified, the graph below shows a 
selection of these sites plotted with an annual average for England.  This 
value is an average of all AURN sites in the country.  This is approximately 
100 different values for each year, although the number of operational sites 
does vary.  The variation seen in this data over the last six years matches well 

14



with Hadleigh Gardens, the Eastleigh site used as an indication of background 
levels in the area.  It supports many of the features seen in the Council’s data, 
including an overall decrease in concentrations and a higher than expected 
result seen in 2016.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 µ
g/

m
3

Year

ELAC vs. National Average

Hadleigh Gardens Woodside Avenue Leigh Road/Junction 13 Southampton Road 1

Belmont Road Annual Mean Objective National Average

5.0 New Air Quality Analysers
5.1 The continuous analysers currently in use are approximately 15-20 years old 

and are starting to show problems with reliability.  There is a maintenance 
contract in place and they are serviced regularly, but have now been 
operational well over the expected lifetime of 10 years.  During 2018 
significant problems were experienced with the NO2 analysers at 
Southampton Road and The Point which resulted in extended periods of data 
loss.  The PM10 analyser at Southampton Road also suffered two 
breakdowns, the second time needing to be returned to the manufacturer for 
repair.  

5.2 Data capture was impacted by these problems.  The following table shows the 
data capture at Southampton Road for the last three years.

15



2016 2017 2018

NO2 95% 94% 92%

PM10 97% 95% 89%

This demonstrates the deteriorating data capture as the instruments become 
less reliable.  It should be noted that the 2018 data has not yet been ratified 
and it’s possible the data capture figure will fall further at this stage.  This is 
certainly expected to happen at The Point where it is likely a period of 
approximately 30 days (when anomalously low values were recorded) will be 
removed. 

5.3 A further advantage in replacing the equipment would be to expand the 
pollutants monitored, given the expected changes to the guidelines as 
discussed in Section 2.8.  The Council’s preferred new analyser option would 
measure PM2.5 alongside PM10, allowing us to also report these 
concentrations.  

5.4 When replacing equipment we should also consider the opportunity to 
relocate the sites at The Point and Steele Close, as these are not located in 
an optimum position to measure exposure.  The anticipated cost of replacing 
the equipment at Southampton Road and relocating and replacing the 
equipment in the other two sites is circa £70,000.  This includes the cabinet, 
analysers and installation but not the concrete base or provision of power. 

6.0 Development of an Air Quality Management Strategy & Action 
Plans for Air Quality Management Areas

6.1 Once the Government’s new National Air Quality Strategy (NAQS) is 
published (expected in Spring 2019) there will be a need for Eastleigh 
Borough to reflect the new commitments and standards set for the monitoring 
of air quality and the achievement of improved air quality standards with 
further reductions in the levels of pollution emissions.

6.2 A further report covering this aspect of work is to be presented to this 
committee.

7.0 Financial Implications
7.1 Once the new monitoring requirements are made known by the Government a 

report will be presented to Cabinet, requesting the consideration of the cost of 
the proposed new monitoring stations in their new locations, (estimated to be 
in the region of £100,000)

16



8.0 Risk Assessment
8.1 If we continue on the Council’s current path with no change in equipment, 

further breakdowns and loss of data are expected.       If data capture 
continues to fall at our continuous monitoring stations, there is a risk we will 
no longer meet data capture guidelines.  According to the LAQM Technical 
Guidance (2016) data capture of 85% is required to report yearly 
exceedances, and 75% is required to calculate an average.

8.2 Poor air quality has a significant effect on public health, caused by both short 
term and long term exposure.  Associated health problems include the 
exacerbation of asthma, cardiovascular and respiratory diseases and reduced 
life expectancy.  More information is available at:
 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-air-
pollution/health-matters-air-pollution. 

9.0 Equality and Diversity Implications
9.1 Air quality disproportionately effects the most vulnerable in society notably 

people suffering from pulmonary and respiratory diseases, the elderly and 
young children.  The monitoring of air quality provides essential information to 
help prioritise locations and activities and the adoption of measures. 

 

10.0 Conclusion
10.1 Eastleigh Borough Council continues to work towards the delivery of the   

Eastleigh AQMA Action Plan. 

10.2 ELAC is asked to note the need for replacing the air quality monitoring 
equipment and relocating two of these stations. 

BRET WILLERS
ENVIRONMENT LEAD SPECIALIST

Date: 08.01.2019
Contact Officer: Isabel Hessey
Tel No: 023 8068 3356
E-mail: isabel.hessey@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 6

17

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-air-pollution/health-matters-air-pollution
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-matters-air-pollution/health-matters-air-pollution


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendices 

APPENDIX 1 Diffusion Tube Monitoring Locations ELAC

List of diffusion tube locations within the Eastleigh Local Area:

 Belmont Road
 Bishopstoke Road 2
 Campbell Road

Key:

Red Dot = Diffusion Tube Location

Purple Shading = Air Quality Management Areas

Blue Line = ELAC Boundary

19



 Chestnut Avenue
 Chestnut Close
 Dove Dale
 Hadleigh Gardens
 Mill Street
 Oxburgh Close
 Passfield Avenue
 Pluto Road
 The Point
 Southampton Road x3
 Sparrow Square
 Twyford Road
 Woodside Avenue

List of diffusion tube locations at other nearby locations:

 Bishopstoke Road
 Leigh Road/Junction 13
 Medina Close
 Porteous Crescent
 Steele Close

20



Appendix 2. Eastleigh Air Quality Action Plan Update December 2018

ID. Measure Progress to Date Estimated Completion Date Update December 2018

E1 AQ Monitoring NO2 diffusion tubes within AQMA. Automatic 
monitoring for NO2 and PM10 in two locations within 

AQMA.  Some additional tube monitoring undertaken 
in southern Hamble and on Woodhouse Lane.  

Elevated levels found on A27 in Burseldon.

Ongoing. Monitoring ongoing.  Investigation of the elevated 
levels found on the A27 in Burseldon is ongoing.  
Additional tube monitoring has been started on 

Southampton Road to further assess levels at relevant 
exposure points.

Iknaia pilot project introduced to two sites in ELAC 
during 2018.

Funding bid to DEFRA for additional innovative 
monitoring equipment.

E2 Consider Intern Internship complete. Internship completed January 2017. Re-organisation of the council has created a more 
senior level post to do this work, however there is still 
need for a pro-active role in this area (Report in the 
New Year will be presented to cabinet to make the 

Business Case).

E3 Park and ride Potential for park and ride in vicinity of M27 J5, but 
work undertaken by Solent Transport found it would 

perform poorly in relation to cost, and was also 
considered prior to the construction of a large car park 

at Southampton Airport Parkway.  Businesses at 
Hampshire Corporate Park currently operate a private 

park and ride.

No plans currently proposed. Park and Ride policy will be 
reviewed as part of Local Plan process.  EBC will keep 
these park & ride proposals under review in liaison with 

SCC, HCC and the Solent Transport authorities.

Inclusion of some text revisions in draft local plan 
recognising there may be potential for park & ride from 
Stoneham Lane, linked to sports pitches development 

proposals.  A study has been commissioned to 
consider the business case for a Park and Ride in this 

location.

E4 Increase use of 
public transport

2016 EBC Public Transport Review reviewed Council's 
subsidy for bus services and retained majority of 

previously supported services without change.  Over 
last 12 to 24 months there have been some 
commercially driven improvements including 

substantial investment in new lower emission buses by 
all operators, and improvements to frequency on 

certain services.  Bus use statistics not shared by bus 
operators as commercially sensitive but our 

understanding is that bus patronage on most routes is 
stable or growing on most core routes.   Train station 
usage at Borough stations up from 4.48m passengers 

p/a (2014/15) to 4.68m (2015/16).

Public Transport Review secured Council supported bus 
services until 2020. Various minor bus stop improvements 

completed on ongoing basis.  South Western Rail 
Franchise awarded March 2017 following lobbying and 
consultation response by EBC, new timetable expected 
from December 2018-  EBC have responded in detail to 

the timetable consultation seeking/ making case for 
improvements.

EBC have responded in detail to the SWR Dec 2018 
timetable consultation seeking/ making case for 

improvements.   Timetable changes have now been 
deferred until May 2019, and the extent of these is 

unclear.  The Council supported a funding application 
to improve the accessibility at Hedge End Train 

Station.

Two additional EBC-supported Sunday bus services to 
Eastleigh (funded by BSOG money) implemented 
September 2017.   Xelabus service changes are 

expected in February 2019, including reductions and 
some very poorly used journeys withdrawn.

21



E5 Overnight 
deliveries

Delivery and Service Plan project bid (Sustainable 
Transport Transition Year Fund) unsuccessful.

Not identified. No change although DSP may be something we could 
include in potential future AQ funding bids.

E6 HGV restriction No progress to date. Not identified. No change.  EBC has no powers of its own to restrict 
HGV movements and there are already weight 

restrictions on one route into the town centre, limiting 
potential for further restrictions.

E7 EBC sustainable 
and Climate 

Change group

No progress to date. Prioritisation in 2017/18 with a view to establishing long 
term relationships.

No change.

E8 Electric hook up 
points

No further progress for publically available charge 
points. EBC continues to consider opportunities for EV 

charging and will seek funding if a case can be 
identified for suitable locations. There are a number of 
publically available electric charging points including 

two available in the Mitchell Road Multi Story Car 
Park. Officers will be attending HCC public sector 

Public Sector Electric Vehicle Charging Framework 
event in July.

Mitchell Road Multi Story Car Park Charging Point 
installed 2011.

The Council continues to seek opportunities for 
publically available EV charging points, with one in the 
process of being installed at Chestnut Avenue Retail 
Park and a business case being developed for further 

charging points around Eastleigh town centre.  The 
Civic Gateway plans include a number of EV charging 
points.  We have also updated the Parking Standards 
SPD to include provision of EV charging points, and 
engage with developers to encourage this.  This is 

done on a site by site basis and is subject to planning 
rules.

E9 Bus station - 
turn engines off

Not enforced. Once established, enforcement will remain ongoing. Initial investigations suggest this is not a significant 
issue.  Bluestar already have proactive policies on this.

E10 Taxi rank - turn 
engines off

Not enforced. Low emission taxi marketing and implementation funding 
until March 2018.

Initial investigations suggest this is not a significant 
issue.  Low emissions taxi funding offers an 

opportunity to raise awareness by engaging with local 
taxi operators on air quality. 

SEE E20

E11 Traffic free 
zones

Leigh Road cycle way in town centre modified to 
ensure provision of traffic free space for cyclists in 
2016. Dead end roads and cycle-/pedestrian only 

linkages incorporated into Eastleigh Town 
developments create areas of local traffic only 

reducing through flow of traffic in residential areas.

Ongoing. No further progress at present- no current proposals 
exist for extension of or new traffic free areas in / 
vicinity of town centre.  Romsey Road roundabout 

study (see E12) may provide some peripheral 
opportunities.

22



E12 Better traffic flow M27 Junction 5/ Leigh Road/ Woodside Avenue / 
Passfield Avenue upgrades completed, affecting traffic 

through the Eastleigh AQMA.  Romsey Road/ 
Bishopstoke Road/ Station Hill junctions scheme at 

feasibility stage including site investigations and 
parallel work for land acquisition.

Other required road improvements identified in the 
latest Draft Local Plan's Transport Study, including the 

the Chestnut Avenue - Southampton Road junction 
and the Chickenhall Lane - Bishopstoke Road mini 

roundabout but barriers include availability of funding 
and feasibility of some schemes.

Studies to inform completed Spring 2019.
Ongoing activities to follow.

Traffic modelling studies are ongoing in support of our 
Local Plan process, these are aimed at identifying if 
there are ways we can improve local traffic flows via 

developer-delivered/ related infrastructure. The 
Romsey Rd/Station Hill improvement scheme 

identified by HCC is currently not being progressed as 
it is not financially viable.  This is a complex and 

expensive project to be considered in the longer term.

The Junction 5 study on the M27 is proving to be a 
complex, costly longer term project.

E13 Chickenhall Link 
Road

Design work and discussion in Sustainable Transport 
Study. Land safeguarded as a saved policy from the 

Adopted EBC Local Plan (91.T).

Long term aspiration. No further progress-  desirable scheme but unfunded 
(despite political commitment by Chancellor of 
Exchequer to fund road in 2015) and hence not 

currently being progressed.
Airport Draft Master Plan by Southampton 

International Airport  submitted for consideration.

E14 Traffic analysis/ 
Source 

apportionment

Funding identified. Estimated 2018. Modelling results of NO2 and PM10 levels across the 
borough in 2020 have been delayed.  These are now 

expected in Spring 2019.

E15 Better bus 
routes

EBC Public Transport Review completed 2016. 
Various infrastructure improvements e.g. minor 

improvements to bus stops & bus station have been 
ongoing (see previous AQMA action updates) and 

more are planned in future - made as part of 
Eastleigh's commitment to a "Quality Bus Partnership".  

Regular liaison with all three key Borough bus 
operators on various issues.

Quality bus partnership improvement works ongoing. 
Review , meetings with operators and lobbying on various 

issues ongoing.

Bluestar 2 bike2 bus completed at 12 locations 
summer 2017.     Improvements to Sunday and bank 

holiday bus services on several routes passing 
through AQMA in 2017- some commercially driven, 

some funded by EBC using BSOG funds.  Several bus 
stop improvement schemes planned (e.g. 3 sites on 

key route through Bishopstoke) in this year’s 
programme subject to staff capacity.

E16 Bus day ticket 
for Eastleigh

Solent go card provides a framework for a local multi-
operator day ticket. A bus day ticket is also available 

for the "Southampton Plus" zone operated by Bluestar 
1,2,3 and 5. Possible to purchase Green Day rider 

from Xelabus to travel for the day. Work on Eastleigh 
multi-operator ticket not currently resourced.

Day tickets for certain operators available however not 
interchangeable. New First / MTR south western franchise 

may help progress integration of rail options on south 
Hants wide Solent Go card.

No further progress.

23



E17 Cycle network 
improvement

 Leigh Road cycle way in town centre has been 
kerbed to provide traffic free space for cyclists in 
2016.

 An off road shared path along Chestnut Avenue 
near the colleges also completed 2016.

 Bus stop parking scheme extended to Bluestar 
2 route 2017.

 To encourage cycling a "mum & baby" cycle 
group will be established at Fleming Park 
funded using Southampton area "Access" fund 
money.

 EBC/ HCC working to deliver Hut Hill 
(Chandler's Ford-Southampton) phase 1 
scheme later 2017

 Feasibility work ongoing for completion of 
missing section of Bishopstoke Road cycle link 
for delivery circa 2018-19.

 South of Chestnut Avenue major development 
site (which should deliver some significant cycle 
infrastructure improvements) at planning 
reserved matters stage and if approved 
implementation likely to occur over next few 
years.

Ongoing.  Hut Hill phase 1 still in HCC delivery plan (to 
be delivered by EBC) for 2017/18, but being 
held up by an outstanding land transfer.

 Study work on improvements related to 
development on Stoneham Lane undertaken; 
this will lead to improved design of some parts 
of developer-delivered cycle links in the area 
(to be delivered in coming years).

 Bishopstoke Rd "missing link" - funding 
identified and now working with HCC towards 
delivery of this key missing section of route.

 Lakeside cycle route- related to south of 
Chestnut Avenue development- construction 
underway

E18 More secure 
cycle storage

Secure cycle storage at Eastleigh station removed in 
2014 as under-used, poorly located, and wasteful of 
space required for the forecourt improvements.  Non-
secure bike rack provision has increased at stations, 

town centres and bus stops.

Not identified. Discussions underway with Yo Bikes to extend their 
scheme into Eastleigh.

E19 Increase trees Considered and implemented on a case by case basis. Ongoing. Latest iteration of the Draft Local Plan proposes a 2 for 
1 replacement policy for lost trees. A thousand trees 
are being planted at the Stoneham development site.  

There is also a major planting scheme on Fleming 
Park as part of development mitigation.

24



E20 Improved eco 
engines

Awarded funding from Defra for implementation of Low 
emission taxi scheme in Southampton & Eastleigh. 
Resubmission of OLEV Bluestar 2 micro hybrid bus 

bid was unsuccessful but the SCC bid to the clean bus 
technology fund was successful.

Defra AQ Grant (Low emission taxis) – 2018. Taxi Low emission grant scheme secured funding, to 
date 10 grants have been issued for replacement taxis 

in Eastleigh, alongside 60 for Southampton City 
Council. Clean Bus Technology fund all buses on 

passenger routes in EBC Euro VI equivalent by end 
2018

Need for Southampton’s marketing officer to be more 
pro-active in promoting scheme to Eastleigh’s taxi 

drivers.

Also running campaigns to address vehicle standards 
in taxis with roadside checks.

E21 New improved 
buses

Ongoing for operator led initiatives. Resubmission of 
OLEV Bluestar 2 micro hybrid bus bid early 2017.

Ongoing for operator led initiatives. Resubmission for 
funding from OLEV unsuccessful.

See E20.

25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Appendix 3. Monitoring data measured at automatic stations in Eastleigh (Provisional data only, subject 
to further ratification and validation).  

0

50

100

150

200

250

01/12/2017 01/01/2018 01/02/2018 01/03/2018 01/04/2018 01/05/2018 01/06/2018 01/07/2018 01/08/2018 01/09/2018 01/10/2018 01/11/2018

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 (µ
g/

m
3 )

Date

Southampton Road- Nitrogen Dioxide (Dec 17 - Nov 18)

NO2 1 hour Hourly Limit Annual Limit

Annual Average measured = 38 µg/m3 Annual Target Value = 40 µg/m3

Exceedances of 1 hour target value = 0 1 hour Target Value = 200 µg/m3

Data Capture Rate* (Dec 17 – Nov 18) 92%

* Missing data July to August due to service engineer mis-setting the instrument after service. The data has been removed until 
Kings College complete the end of year ratification when we will find out if it is recoverable.

27



2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

01/12/2017 01/01/2018 01/02/2018 01/03/2018 01/04/2018 01/05/2018 01/06/2018 01/07/2018 01/08/2018 01/09/2018 01/10/2018 01/11/2018

PM
10

(µ
g/

m
3 )

Date

Southampton Road- PM10 (Dec 17 - Nov 18)

PM10 24 hour Annual Limit 24 Hour Limit

Annual Average measured = 23 µg/m3 Annual Target Value = 40 µg/m3

Exceedances of 24 hour target value* = 2   24 hour Target Value = 50 µg/m3

19 December 17

19 April 18

Data Capture Rate* 89%

* - Data gap in early May due to instrument breakdown and time taken to effect repair

28



3

0

50

100

150

200

250

01/12/2017 01/01/2018 01/02/2018 01/03/2018 01/04/2018 01/05/2018 01/06/2018 01/07/2018 01/08/2018 01/09/2018 01/10/2018 01/11/2018

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 (µ
g/

m
3 )

Date

Steele Close- Nitrogen Dioxide (Dec 17 - Nov 18)

NO2 1 hour Hourly Limit Annual Limit

Annual Average measured = 28 µg/m3 Annual Target Value = 40 µg/m3

Exceedances of 1 hour target value = 0 1 hour Target Value = 200 µg/m3

Data Capture Rate (Jan to August) = 100%

29



4

0

50

100

150

200

250

01/12/2017 01/01/2018 01/02/2018 01/03/2018 01/04/2018 01/05/2018 01/06/2018 01/07/2018 01/08/2018 01/09/2018 01/10/2018 01/11/2018

N
itr

og
en

 D
io

xi
de

 (µ
g/

m
3 )

Date

The Point- Nitrogen Dioxide (Dec 17 - Nov 18)

NO2 1 hour Hourly Limit Annual Limit

Annual Average measured = 26 µg/m3 Annual Target Value = 40 µg/m3

Exceedances of 1 hour target value = 0 1 hour Target Value = 200 µg/m3

Data Capture Rate* = 100%

* Anomalous low values are seen in September and October.  It is likely these will be removed at the ratification stage, affecting the 
final data capture figure. 

30



Appendix 4

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE

08 January 2019

EASTLEIGH AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA ACTION PLAN 

- REVIEW AND UPDATE PROPOSALS 2019

REPORT OF THE ENVIRONMENT LEAD SPECIALIST

Summary
This report outlines the timescale and actions that will be undertaken to review and 
update the existing Eastleigh Air Quality Management Area Action Plan.

Statutory Powers
 Environment Act 1995, Part IV

 Air Quality Strategy for England 2007

 Air quality plan for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in UK (2017)

1.0 Introduction
1.1 All ‘District’ Councils have a duty to carry out reviews and monitor current and 

future air quality within their area and take action where objectives are being 
breached.  Areas which exceed pollutant objectives must be designated as an 
Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and a 5 year Action Plan produced.

1.2 The borough has four Air Quality Management Areas.

1.3 The designated Air Quality Management Area for Eastleigh includes 
Southampton Road, Leigh Road, Twyford Road (part), Woodside Avenue 
(part) and Bishopstoke Road (part), the M3 AQMA passes though the south 
west, and borders the western boundary, of ELAC. The reason for designation 
of the all of the AQMAs in the borough is emissions of nitrogen dioxide from 
road vehicles.

2.0 Background

2.2 The current Action Plan for the Eastleigh AQMA was approved by ELAC (SEE 
APPENDIX 2) in January 2015. The plan was designed to cover the period up 
to 2020. A report is made to ELAC 6 monthly on progress with implementing 
these actions, the list of the actions is included at Appendix 5. The air quality 

31



Appendix 4

measures focus on actions to reduce levels of Nitrogen Dioxide (NO2). 
However, actions taken to tackle this will also help to reduce fine particulate 
matter (PM2.5) and coarse particulate matter (PM10).

2.3 While the plan spans the period 2015 to 2020 we are able to review and 
amend the plan before the nominal end date should we have reason to do so. 
For example as a result of changes in legislation or local changes to road 
layouts. 

2.4 In the time that has passed since the Eastleigh AQMA Action Plan was 
updated and approved by ELAC in January 2015 there has been a great deal 
of activity nationally and locally, in policy and practical terms with respect to 
air quality.

2.5 To highlight some of the changes; at a national level the Government has 
been prompted to issue and consult on its approach to dealing with failures to 
meet the national target value for nitrogen dioxide which is widely exceeded in 
towns and cities across the UK. This resulted in the publication of  the national 
Air quality plan for nitrogen dioxide (NO2) in UK (2017).

2.6 Eastleigh’s Local Plan addresses the Borough’s future housing needs and 
establishing the infrastructure support new industrial and commercial activities 
to support economic growth.   Housing development and initiatives like 
Southampton International Airport’s Masterplan with its proposal to extend the  
runway and double the number of passengers by 2027 will all have an impact 
upon transport demands and likely emission levels.. 

2.7  Southampton City Council are required to have a Clean Air Zone (CAZ) in 
place by next spring at the latest. This will have an impact upon the 
generation and movement of traffic and resultant air pollution levels in and 
around Eastleigh town. Similarly across the Borough the Botley by-pass will 
also have a significant impact on the town of Botley and its AQMA..

2.7 There is now a considerable amount of new legislation and guidance, which 
has expanded the scope of actions we should consider to mitigate the impact 
of air pollution on the public. Actions taken as part of the Southampton CAZ 
will also affect air quality in Eastleigh. 

2.8 Previously the approach of our work may have been characterised as 
implementing actions to reduce pollution levels from vehicles and measuring 
progress toward meeting the national target value, we are now expected to 
embrace a wider approach to reduce public exposure to air pollutants e.g.

 promote healthy and more active lifestyles

32



Appendix 4

 provide up to date and accessible information about local air pollution
 Provide forecasts of days when air pollution will be elevated
 Integrate action plans with our local strategies, e.g. Local Plan, or 

Borough wide Air quality strategy
 Consider ‘voluntary’ Clean air zone(s), with local polices e.g., planning 

policies to promote cleaner technology/ tighter standards, variable 
parking charges, solid fuel combustion controls

 Encourage / facilitate a move to ULEV (ultra-low emission vehicles e.g. 
electric) 

 Look at council purchasing policies
 Along with the approaches we currently take:
 Encourage mode shift – from cars to public transport, cycling and 

walking
 Moving to Euro 6/ VI engines for all vehicles
 Improve traffic flow / reduce congestion
 Improve integration and  access to public transport services
 Promotion of active travel with the development of Footpath and 

cycleway networks
 Monitoring of pollutant levels and reporting on this

2.9 Whilst we have adapted to these changes as they have come in over the last 
few years this has been on an ad hoc basis. For example we have brought in 
the AirAlert project to provide forecast alerts when air pollution levels are 
expected to be elevated. 

3.0 Development of an Eastleigh Air Quality Strategy and Air 
Quality Management Plan

3.1 There is now a  growing body of evidence relating elevated levels of air 
pollution, to health impacts (both chronic and acute),  impacting upon people 
of all ages especially the young and with those with respiratory diseases

3.2 This increased sense of urgency on the part of Government for Local 
Authorities to take action with a stronger emphasis on the need for a more 
holistic wide ranging approach for reducing public exposure to air pollution. As 
a result now the Borough Council needs to introduce a Borough wide Strategy 
which identifies the range of policies and interventions and their relationships 
to each other across the organisation and in partnership with neighbouring 
authorities and other agencies.. 

3.3 The Pollution Control Team in partnership with Transport & Engineering and 
Planning & development will be currently carrying out a wide ranging review of 
our strategic approach and the practical measures we can take to manage air 
pollution across Eastleigh Borough. Clearly, Eastleigh town and its AQMA 
Action Plan are important parts of this overall review.

33



Appendix 4

3.4 The wide ranging review will be looking at the following:
a) implications for our current activities on air pollution management resulting 
from the Government’s new Clean Air Strategy (to be published soon) which 
has indicated tighter standards for some air pollutants, and greater emphasis 
on making data on air pollution and forecasts of air pollution available to the 
public, [monitoring and measurement of pollutants based on and tighter 
standards for PM10 and pM2.5 which have been proposed]; 
b) impacts arising from the Southampton Clean Air Zone, CAZ, the boundary 
of the charging zone is likely to run the length of the boundary between EBC 
and SCC and therefore will have an impact on vehicle movements especially 
from businesses in Eastleigh and the resulting levels of air pollution 
c) modelling of air pollution levels across the Borough as a whole, and 
identifying areas where additional action may be required on air pollution 
beyond our current understanding (and building on the likely changes that we 
can foresee, SCC CAZ, Botley Bypass etc.). This may identify new 
geographical areas where we will have to take action
d) investigating source apportionment of air pollutants from different vehicle 
types within the existing AQMAs. This will assist us in quantifying the 
effectiveness of actions targeted at specific groups to reduce air pollution and 
to  
e) identifying the most effective measures for reducing emissions overall and  
to see what combinations of actions are likely to be the most practical and 
effective in delivery lasting results;
e) determining borough wide actions to reduce air pollution levels / or reduce 
exposure to elevated air pollution
f) identifying AQMA specific (local) actions
g) reviewing how we structure our Action Plans to make them better to 
understand and to streamline reporting locally d nationally.
h) considering how best to develop borough wide strategic approach to 
manage air pollution in conjunction with the local Plan, corporate Plan and 
AQMA Action Plans.
i) reviewing our monitoring regime to ensure it is suitable for determining 
compliance with current and future air pollution targets and action plan 
measures, 
j) reviewing our provision of information for the public and forecasting of 
periods of higher air pollution

3.5 As for the development of Eastleigh’s AQMA Action Plan there are a number 
of key areas which will need to be addressed listed in (SEE APPENDIX 5).

34



Appendix 4

• Review policy impacts Nationally and Locally (Govt Clean Air Strategy, Local 
Plan) and plans and programmes being put in place by others (SCC CAZ / 
SIA Masterplan) 

• Review the results of modelling and monitoring of air pollution levels up to 
2020 (source apportionment / Our data / Ricardo modelling)

• Review the effectiveness of measures to reduce air pollution in the existing 
plan

• Outline a public engagement / consultation programme for consulting with 
stakeholders on the proposed changes to the Action Plan

• Carry out engagement  / consultation on the draft new plan

4.0 Financial Implications
4.1 There are no financial implications at this stage although there may well be a 

need to consider the need for investment in monitoring equipment in the near 
future and that this is likely to be presented as a corporate matter to Cabinet. 

5.0 Risk Assessment
5.1 No direct implications of this report.

6.0 Equality and Diversity Implications
6.1 Air quality disproportionately effects the most vulnerable in society notably 

people suffering from pulmonary and respiratory diseases, the elderly and 
young children The monitoring of air quality provides essential information to 
help prioritise locations and activities and the adoption of measures 

 
7.0 Conclusion
7.1 Eastleigh Borough Council continues to work towards the delivery of the   

Eastleigh AQMA Action Plan. 

BRET WILLERS
ENVIRONMENT LEAD SPECIALIST

Date: 08.01.2019
Contact Officer: Neil Scott
Tel No: 023 8068 8304

35



Appendix 4

E-mail: neil.scott@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 0

36



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Research& intelligence
1 Researching best practise in air 

quality ‘action planning’ / 
management in UK

2 Review of monitoring equipment 
(real time & diffusion tubes) on the 
market VFM & quality

3 Review data management and 
validation services to support real 
time analysers and pollution 
forecasting

4 Review of current real time 
analyser locations across Borough 
and within AQMAs (inc Eastleigh)

5 Review of Southampton’s Final 
Clean Air Zone and associated 
Strategies and Policies and their 
likely impact upon Eastleigh’s air 
quality.

6 Conduct experiment of effect of 
diffusion tube height above ground 
on readings for NO2 at test 
locations

37



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
7 Complete SYSTRA Traffic model for 

Local Plan assessing impact of 
Strategic Growth Areas

8 Complete RICARDO Air Quality 
modelling of pollutant levels for 
2020 based upon SYSTRA Traffic 
data.

9 Review existing air quality 
monitoring data and identify any 
further monitoring needs and if 
additional or amended AQMAs 
required. 

10 Detailed Evaluation of the Airscan 
monitors in comparison with the 
real time sensors for their 
reliability, effectiveness and 
accuracy.

11 Review effectiveness of current 
Action Plan actions

12 Source apportionment, and review 
of additional data gathering 
necessary to support detailed 
source apportionment

38



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
13 Consult with key stakeholders on 

potential actions to tackle air 
pollution – Members, Public, 
County council (health, highways), 
Local businesses, other LAs, etc

14 Review and assess effectiveness of 
proposed AP actions (new and 
amended)

15 Identify ‘Actions’ to take forward 
into revised Action Plan

16 Consult with key stakeholders on 
preferred new / updated actions to 
tackle air pollution – Members, 
Public, County council (health, 
highways), Local businesses, other 
LAs, etc

17 Review feedback from consultees 
on revised action plan

18 Produce final Revised action plan 
and submit to Defra for comment / 
approval

39



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Partnership Working
19 Work with neighbouring 

authorities to address boundary 
issues or to minimise impacts of 
their Action Plans in driving traffic 
towards Eastleigh

20 Establish links with Bus Companies 
on tackling congestion and 
emissions reduction

21 Appoint a Travel Plans Officer 
shared with Southampton City 
Council

22 Appoint  a wood fuel burner 
Awareness & Advisory post with 
Southampton, Winchester & New 
Forest

23 Plan network of Airscan & Blue 
Tooth monitoring equipment with 
HCC and ‘Iknaia’ including 
locations, power supply & network 
linkage issues

24 Work with Taxi Forum on the 
uptake of Electric Vehicles and 
more efficient use of vehicles to 
reduce emissions

40



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
25 Develop Supplementary Planning 

guidance for Air Quality to inform 
planning decisions, Section 106 
Agreements 

26 Work with Southern Rail on Station 
improvements e.g. parking and 
access improvements to encourage 
modal shift

TBC TBC TBC TBC

27 Work with local businesses to 
reduce their direct and indirect air 
pollution contributions

28 Work to promote the Air Alert 
system to local stakeholder groups

Understanding changes in Legislation and its application
29 Review of Government’s revised 

Clean Air Strategy and any 
consequential changes for air 
quality management in the 
Borough and AQMAs.[Expect 
publication Spring 2019]

30 Review of the new monitoring 
guidelines and procedures 
recommended by DEFRA.

41



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
Procurement & Installation of Monitoring Equipment
31 Gain approvals for preferred 

locations of new or amended 
monitoring equipment with 
landowners and other parties eg 
HCC Highways Dept (where 
necessary). 

32 Identify real time monitoring 
equipment requirements at 
preferred locations

33 Detail the specification for the 
procurement of new real time 
monitoring stations 

34 Address infrastructure and 
maintenance issues for the real 
time monitoring equipment & 
Airscan Pilot.

35 Arrange and oversee installation 
and commissioning of new 
locations

Development of Air Quality Strategy & Action Plans for AQMA’s
35 Draft Borough wide AQ Strategy

36 Review and reissue AQMA AP for 
Hamble Lane

42



APPENDIX 5

Ref Activity Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
37 Review AQMA for Botley High 

Street

38 Develop over arching AQMA for all 
existing AQMAs

43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 8 January 2019 

EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE VARIOUS ORDER

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist

Recommendations

It is recommended that the Eastleigh Local Area Committee approve:  

(1) the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions on Launceston Drive, Parham Drive, 
Sopwith Road, Tower Lane, Judd Close, Oaktree Way, and Oxburgh Close, given 
the on-going safety issues at these locations and having regard to the comments 
received during the consultation, 

(2) the alteration to the ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions to ‘No Loading / Unloading 
at Any Time’ on Wells Place, given the on-going safety issues at this location and 
having regard to the comment received during the consultation, 

(3) the legalisation of the existing disabled bays at The High Street, Cranbury Road, 
Woodpecker Way, Grantham Road, and Greenwood Close, given the inconsiderate 
parking where drivers ignore the marked Disabled Parking Places in some 
locations, and 

(4) the amendment of the existing restrictions which will lengthen the existing restricted 
parking bays within York Road, due to the difficulty residents have in locating on 
street parking. 

Summary

A number of amendments to the current Eastleigh Town Centre Order Traffic Regulation 
Order (TRO) have been proposed and consulted on:

 New waiting restrictions in Launceston Drive, Parham Drive, Sopwith Road, Tower 
Lane, Judd Close, Oaktree Way, and Oxburgh Close.

 An alteration to the type of restriction to the existing restrictions in Wells Place.
 Legalisation of the existing Disabled Persons Parking Bays in The High Street, 

Cranbury Road, Woodpecker Way, Grantham Road, and Greenwood Close.
 Alterations have been proposed to the length of existing restricted parking bays in 

York Road.

Statutory Powers

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.

Legal Agreements

45

Agenda Item 7



Eastleigh Borough Council

Agency Agreement dated 30 March 2009 between Hampshire County Council and 
Eastleigh Borough Council.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report addresses a number of the strategic objectives: Tackling 
Congestion by dealing with inappropriate parking and helping to create an 
Excellent Environment for all.  Improvements to the environment in areas of 
relative deprivation also help to Tackle Deprivation.  In areas of employment 
and economic activity such as industrial estates and town and local centres, 
controls of parking aim to support the local economy.

Consultation

2. The formal consultation was advertised in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, on the Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) website, the HCC Public 
Notices Portal and on public notices placed throughout affected areas. 

3. The following comments were received regarding the proposals, as set-out 
below.

Summary of Comments

4. This section summarises the responses received from residents in relation to 
each location and the Committee is asked to consider the comments received, 
in order to inform their decision on the implementation, or otherwise, of the 
Traffic Regulation Order. 
-In Relation to Parham Drive, Sopwith Road, Judd Close, and Oaktree Way, 
which are included within the various order no responses were received.

-The proposal for Oxburgh Close received one comment asking if the 
restriction might be extended to ensure the residents parking area access is 
kept clear.

-The proposal for Tower Lane received two positive objections both 
expressing the same opinion that the restriction whilst it would help did not go 
far enough and asked if could be extended.

-The proposal for Launceston Drive received one comment supporting the 
proposed measures and asking if further measures could be considered.

Response to Received Comments

5. Eastleigh Borough Council has not received any previous complaints 
regarding obstructed access to the resident’s garage area within Oxburgh 
Close; therefore it is felt that increasing the restriction length would be overly 
restrictive.

46



Eastleigh Borough Council

Eastleigh Borough Council recognises that parking within Tower Lane is at a 
premium; the object of this order is to keep accesses and junctions clear for 
the commercial vehicles. However further monitoring of the location to ensure 
the issue has been fully addressed would be worthwhile.

Eastleigh Borough Council has received previous complaints regarding 
occasional obstructive parking within Launceston Drive; however it is felt that 
implementing restrictions on each occasion would be overly restrictive. The 
area is to be monitored to see if this is a growing issue requiring action.

Financial Implications

6. The cost of the TRO and associated signs and road markings are 
approximately £5000 and are funded through the Local Area Committee 
budget.  

7. Any amendments or new proposals which require the Traffic Regulation Order 
to be re-advertised and further consultation to be carried out, will incur 
additional costs relating to staff time and advertisement expenses that were 
not included in the original estimate for the work. Due to time and budget 
limitations, such changes would be better addressed through inclusion in a 
future Consolidation TRO.

Risk Assessment

8. The risk is considered to be low as the objections have been considered 
before the order is taken forward to be made permanent.

Equality and Diversity Implications

9. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to advancing equality of opportunity, in the following ways: By 
legalising existing the disabled parking places it will ensure the spaces are 
available to the intended users. The decision will result in an improvement for 
people with mobility problems. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has 
not been carried out, because while there are some equalities impacts, these 
are of a positive nature and it is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA.

Conclusion

10. The proposed Traffic Regulation Order to introduce new waiting restrictions in 
Eastleigh received two positive objections (in that the writer feels the 
measures should go further) and two comments supporting the proposals and 
asking if additional measures could be considered locally. 

11. This report takes this into account and makes a recommendation to address 
the original issues.

DAVID PICKETT
SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST

47



Eastleigh Borough Council

Date: 14 November 2018
Contact Officer: David Pickett
Tel No: 02380688230
e-mail: david.pickett@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 13
Report No ELAC/17-18-001

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

48



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Judd Close.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

49

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Launceston Drive.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

51

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Oak Tree Way.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

53

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Oxburgh Close.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

55

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Parham Drive.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

57

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Sopwith Road.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

59

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Tower Lane.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

61

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Wells Place.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

63

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ restrictions in Woodpecker Way.
2. Legalisation of a Disabled Person Parking Bay.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

65

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. Legalisation of a Disabled Person Parking Bay.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

67

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. Legalisation of a Disabled Person Parking Bay.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

69

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. Legalisation of a Disabled Person Parking Bay.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

71

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



[Type a quote from the document or the summary of an interesting point. You can position the text box anywhere in the document. Use the Drawing Tools tab to change the formatting of the 
pull quote text box.]

Ian Austin – Legal Services Manager
Eastleigh House – Upper Market Street – Eastleigh - Hants SO50 9YN

PROPOSED PARKING 
RESTRICTIONS NOTICE       

THE BOROUGH OF EASTLEIGH (EASTLEIGH TOWN CENTRE)
(AMENDMENT NO. 8) ORDER 2018

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that The Council of the Borough of Eastleigh (hereinafter referred to as "the Council") pursuant to arrangements 
made with the Hampshire County Council in exercise of the powers of the said County Council under Sections 1, 2 and 4 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984 ("the Act") and Part IV of Schedule 9 to the Act and of all other enabling powers, and after consultation with the Chief 
Officer of Police in accordance with Part III of Schedule 9 to the Act hereby proposes to make the following Order:-

The general effect of the Order will  be to:

A) Make The Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) (Amendment No08) Order 2018, the effect of which is to insert into The 
Borough of Eastleigh (Eastleigh Town Centre) Consolidation Order 2013 new waiting restrictions, and amend some existing restrictions 
as detailed below:

1. Legalisation of a Disabled Person Parking Bay.

A copy of the Order together with all plans showing the roads to which the Order relates and a statement of the Council’s reasons for 
proposing to make the Order may be inspected at Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh during normal office hours or on the 
Council’s website: www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO

Objections to these proposals together with the grounds on which they are made must be sent in writing or via the form on the Councils 
website to the undersigned by XXXXX 2018. Letters of support will also be received during this time.

DATED: XXXXX 2018 (Any enquiries please email engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk)

73

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/TRO


This page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 8 January 2019 

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA ACTION PLAN 2019/20

Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendation

It is recommended that  

The Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan 2019/20 shown in Appendix 1 is approved for 
adoption and publication.

Summary

This report presents the priorities for the coming year for the Local Area Committee.  

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications 

1. This report seeks to address all of the key objectives in the Corporate Plan.

Background

2. The Council has agreed a set of Borough-wide objectives to improve quality 
of life for all. These are set out in the Corporate Plan 2015-25. The Council 
also seeks to enable decisions to be made at the most appropriate local level, 
mostly notably through the five Local Area Committees but also through our 
town and parish councils and other more local partnerships.

3. The Local Area Committee regularly approves a Community Investment 
Programme (CIP), which lists all the local projects and initiatives that the 
Local Area Committee and Parishes would like to deliver in the short, medium 
and long term. The list is used to negotiate section 106 contributions from 
developers which often form the majority of the funds required. These funds 
often need to be pooled from several developments over several years in 
order to achieve sufficient project budget.

75

Agenda Item 8



Eastleigh Borough Council

4. All five Local Area Committees are now seeking to set out a shorter-term list 
of priorities for the coming year and the Eastleigh Plan is given in Appendix 1 
within the Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan 2019/20. The Plan will be used to 
determine budgets and staff resources as part of the Council’s annual 
business planning cycle.

5. Local Area and Cabinet Councillors have been consulted on the draft Plan 
and it is now recommended that the Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan 2019/20 
is approved for adoption and publication, subject to minor formatting changes.

Financial Implications

6. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.

Equality and Diversity Implications

7. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity, or 
fostering good relations between different people. A full Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, because while there are some 
equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to carry out a full EIA.

Conclusion

8. The report presents the draft Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan shown in 
Appendix 1 for approval.

GUY RIDDOCH
LOCAL AREA MANAGER

Date: 20 December 2019
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch
Tel No: 02380 683369
e-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: 1 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.

Background Papers – Eastleigh Borough Council Corporate Plan 2015-20

76



Cllr Paul Bicknell - Local Area Chair

paul.bicknell@eastleigh.gov.uk

Eastleigh (ELAC)

Responsibilities of the  
Local Area Committee

Responsibilities of the  
Local Area Manager 

Key Projects & Priorities

Council Services - Local Variations

 ▶ Decide local priorities

 ▶ Manage local budgets

 ▶ Determine local levels of council services such 
as Streetscene and traffic management

 ▶ Work with the local community

 ▶ Champion the local area

 ▶ Decide planning applications

 ▶ Act as a link between the Council and local 
people

 ▶ Support local Councillors

 ▶ Manage the local revenue budget and the 
capital programme/major projects

 ▶ Work with the Council to improve local 
services and to ensure value for money

 ▶ Identify local needs and priorities

 ▶ Work closely with Parish Councils, schools 
and community groups

 ▶ Major planning applications – 
maximise community benefits 
from current sites at North 
Stoneham Park (including new 
affordable housing, school, 
nursery, community building, 
shops, parks, play areas and 
public art) and Woodside 
Avenue (including new park, 
play area and public art)

 ▶ Deliver open space 
improvements – at the 
Campbell Road play area, 
convert Market Street MUGA 
into a community garden, 
complete Grantham Green 
scheme, commence the new 
Pirelli Park project

 ▶ Refurbish the bus station toilets

 ▶ Enable the transfer of land 
assets to Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury and Allbrook and 
North Boyatt Parish Councils

 ▶ Countryside sites - deliver 
improvements at Lakeside 
Country Park by improving the 
park extension land, car parks 
and signage

 ▶ Town Centre – deliver a 
programme of events in 
partnership with the Eastleigh 
Business and Improvement 
District

 ▶ Air Quality – develop a new Air 
Quality Management Strategy 

 ▶ Employment – open a job club 
at the Cableworks Learning 
Centre

Key Partnerships

 ▶ Allbrook Parish Council

 ▶ Chandler’s Ford and 
Hiltingbury Parish Council

 ▶ Eastleigh Business and 
Improvement District

 ▶ Health providers

 ▶ Local youth service providers 

 ▶ Local community building 
management boards

 ▶ Eastleigh schools and colleges

 ▶ Local residents associations

 ▶ Local housing associations

 ▶ Hampshire Cultural Trust

Hiltingbury
Chandler’s

Ford

Bishopstoke

Horton
Heath

Fair
Oak

Bursledon

Netley

Hamble- 
le-Rice

West
End

Hedge
End

Botley

Eastleigh

Guy Riddoch - Local Area Manager
guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk 023 8068 3369

Local Area Action Plan 
2019/20

77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, 8 January 2019 

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REPORT

Report of the Local Area Manager

Recommendations

It is recommended that  

(1) £30,000 is allocated for public art provision within the North Stoneham Park 
development from future developers’ contributions;

(2) £18,000 is allocated for Campbell Road Play Area improvements from the revenue 
budget;  

(3) £3,300 is allocated for geo-sensing footfall counters across the town centre from 
developers’ contributions, together with £1,650 per annum for three years from 
2019/20 onwards from existing approved Strategic Planning revenue budget; and

(4) £500 is allocated for match funding for a grant bid to raise awareness of the air 
quality implications of open fires and wood burning stoves from the revenue budget.

Summary

This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s capital 
budget and revenue budget, together with the Strategic Planning revenue budget.

Statutory Powers

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area.

Strategic Implications
1 Recommendations in this report relate to the Council’s Corporate Plan 

objectives of Improving Town and Local Centres - by providing the means to 
obtain more accurate and diverse footfall data in the Town Centre; and Enabling 
Healthier Lifestyles/Wellbeing - through the provision of an improved play area in 
an isolated part of the town and through raising awareness of and reducing the 
impact on air quality of wood burning stoves and open fires.

79

Agenda Item 9



Eastleigh Borough Council

North Stoneham Park public art
2 The North Stoneham Park development Section 106 agreement requires the 

developers to provide £331,000 for public art on the estate. The process for 
agreeing how best to use this money and where to put the art has begun with 
the commissioning of a public art masterplan. This will set out the key locations, 
the nature of the public art pieces and a detailed specification for the final 
commissions. This will ensure a more rapid delivery and save time in the long-
run. A tender exercise has been carried out and a contractor will be engaged in 
the near future. A Councillor representative sits on the project team to oversee 
this process.

3 The predicted budget for this initial work is £30,000, however the trigger points 
for the developers contributions are: £100k due on occupation of 50th dwelling, 
£31k on occupation of 200th dwelling, £150k on occupation of 350th dwelling and 
£50k on occupation of 450th dwelling. The current development is progressing 
well but we have only reached the 10th occupation. 

4 In order to progress the public art design work in the New Year the budget 
needs to be allocated ahead of the first developer contribution. It is therefore 
recommended that up to £30,000 is allocated for this work from future 
developers’ contributions, to be funded in the short-term from the revenue 
budget.

Campbell Road Play Area improvements
5 Young people from Campbell Road presented a petition at a previous 

Committee meeting asking if the play area at Campbell Road could be improved, 
Councillors have now reviewed the existing site and agree that the site would 
benefit from additional equipment, as the residents have very poor access to 
local alternatives.

6 At the 20 March 2017 meeting Councillors approved a budget of £20,000 for this 
purpose and added it to the open space work programme. Officers have since 
received quotes from three suppliers for a range of designs. All the quotes 
exceed the above approved budget and Councillors have agreed that additional 
funding is needed in order to deliver the level of improvement required.

7 A public consultation was held on Saturday 8 December and 35 residents (over 
half being local children) attended. There was a clear preference for a design by 
Vitaplay, at a cost of £31,213. In order to improve the options for children with 
disabilities an accessible swing has been added to the scheme (for an extra 
£400) together with an all-weather tarmac path to improve year-round access to 
the site for all. The path will cost in the region of £5,000.

8 The total cost of the new play equipment and path will be £38,000 (including a 
small contingency sum of £1,387). Councillors have asked that the order be 
placed ahead of formal Committee approval, as the suppliers can only hold their 
price until the end of December, in the face of raw material price rises 
anticipated in January.

80



Eastleigh Borough Council

9 It is therefore recommended that an additional £18,000 be allocated for this 
project from the revenue budget.

Town centre footfall monitoring
10 Town centre footfall can be a useful indicator of the health of a town, it helps 

understand how the town is performing against other nearby competing towns, 
in terms overall visitor numbers and market share. It also provides a measure of 
how successful individual events are in attracting additional visitors to the town.  
The Council and Eastleigh Business Improvement District currently jointly fund a 
contract for this service via Springboard, who provide two simple footfall 
cameras. However this is prone to double counting and is limited to the two 
locations, at the top and bottom of Market Street. As a result it gives a poor 
understanding of pedestrian distribution across the town.  This contract comes to 
an end in March 2019 and other options have been explored. The two 
Springboard footfall counters currently costs £6,600pa. This is split 50:50 with 
the BID meaning the Council’s contribution is £3,300pa.

11 The favoured option is for geo-sense sensors, following a successful free trial 
with a single counter in Wells Place over the last year from Elephant Wifi, our 
existing free town centre Wifi provider. These anonymously track mobile devices 
and they have been shown to provide up to 95% accuracy. They also allow heat 
mapping of the distribution of people and the modelling of dwell times and 
journeys around the town – all in real time. This can be very useful with town 
centre marketing and regeneration decisions and even to monitor crowd 
movements during large events. Importantly they make use of the existing Wifi 
infrastructure, reducing the ongoing maintenance cost when compared with 
alternatives.

12 A quote for five additional sensors has been obtained giving a total of six 
positions, as Elephant Wifi have agreed to continue with the free provision of the 
original trial unit. The initial purchase and installation price is £6,600 for five new 
counters. In addition, there is an annual maintenance cost of £3,300pa for 5 
counters for a three year contract. The BID has indicated they would like to 
continue with an equal split of both the initial purchase and the ongoing annual 
maintenance. As with the Wifi contract the BID will be the lead partner and place 
the order. The Council’s contribution to the maintenance cost can be funded 
from the existing approved Strategic Planning budget.

13 It is recommended that £3,300 is allocated for the purchase of the geo-sense 
equipment from the following developers’ contributions (DCF/12/71663, Town 
Quay Developments, Wildern Mill, Charles Watts Way, Hedge End Receipt 
Date:29/05/2014); together with £1,650pa for the following three years from the 
existing approved Strategic Planning budget.

Air Quality 
14 Recent research from Kings College has shown that wood burning stoves and 

open fires can have the same or more effect on health as vehicle emissions; 
with a modern wood burner producing the equivalent of 6 HGVs each year.

81



Eastleigh Borough Council

15 The Council has been asked to join a consortium bid for £100,000 to DEFRA for 
an air quality awareness campaign and supporting staff (1.5 to 2 full time 
equivalents) over a two year period. This will raise awareness of the impact of 
stoves and fires in urban areas, focusing on the two winter periods, with 70% of 
the effort being in the first year. 

16 The bid was submitted in advance of the November deadline, and included 
£2,500 match funding pledge from each of the four participating authorities (ie 
£10,000 total match funding). This was felt to be sufficient to enable a 
reasonable chance of success. The partner authorities are Southampton City, 
Winchester City, New Forest Distract and Eastleigh Borough Councils.

17 It is suggested that the Eastleigh contribution is split equally across the five area 
committees and local Councillors have indicated their support for this project. It 
is therefore recommended that £500 is allocated for the project from the revenue 
budget. 

Financial Implications
18 All recommendations in this report can be contained within existing unallocated 

developer’s contributions and revenue budgets.

Equality and Diversity Implications
19 An equal opportunities assessment has not been carried out as the report 

contains no proposed significant changes to new or existing services, policies or 
strategies. All of the proposed activities are designed to be as inclusive as 
possible, and several are particularly targeted at hard to reach or isolated 
groups.

Conclusion
Members are requested to agree expenditure from this Committee’s capital and 
revenue budgets.

GUY RIDDOCH
LOCAL AREA MANAGER (EASTLEIGH)

Date: 8 January 2019
Contact Officer: Guy Riddoch 
Tel No: 023 8068 3369
E-mail: guy.riddoch@eastleigh.gov.uk
Appendices Attached: None 
Report No AC935

THE LOCALISM ACT 2011
Background papers - None

82


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Eastleigh Air Quality Management Action Plan - Update
	Item 6 Appendix 1
	Item 6 Appendix 2
	Item 6 Appendix 3
	Item 6 Appendix 4
	Item 6 Appendix 5

	7 Eastleigh Town Centre Various Order
	Item 7 App 1
	Item 7 App 2
	Item 7 App 3
	Item 7 App 4
	Item 7 App 5
	Item 7 App 6
	Item 7 App 7
	Item 7 App 8
	TRO 7 App 9
	TRO 7 App 10
	TRO 7 App 11
	TRO 7 App 12
	TRO App 13

	8 Eastleigh Local Area Action Plan 2019/20
	Item 8 Appendix 1

	9 Financial Management Report

